
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Virtual Meeting Notice

Virtual Meeting Notice: The Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission will be 

conducting a meeting on October 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. Due to concerns surrounding the 

spread of COVID-19, the meeting and all public hearings will be conducted both in person 

at the Goodhue County Government Center and virtually via GoToMeeting. COVID-19 CDC 

recommendations will be followed at the meeting including social distancing protocols and 

requiring masks for all attendees appearing in person.

The public may monitor the meeting from a remote site by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/648613421 or calling 1 866 899 4679 beginning at 5:50 

PM or any time during the meeting.  Access Code: 648 -613-421 

Public Comments: Interested persons may submit comments by phone, in writing, or via 

email before noon on Monday, October 18, 2021. To submit your comments please email 

them to samantha.pierret@co.goodhue.mn.us or mail them to the Land Use Management 

Department at 509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN 55066. Comments received by this 

deadline will be read into the record during the public hearing for that item, including name 

and address.

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 20, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_SEPTEMBER2021_ PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Richard O'Brien And Sheila O'Brien Trusts)

Request for CUP, submitted by Richard O ’Brien and Sheila O ’Brien Trusts (Owners) for 

a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities include a sand/aggregate 

pit and associated processing/transport equipment and facilities. Parcels 39.034.0500 

and 39.034.0800. TBD White Pines Road SE Pine Island, MN 55963. The W ½ of the 

SE ¼ and Part of the E ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 34 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine 

Island Township. A1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_OBRIEN_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)

Request submitted by Impact Power Solutions (Brian Keenan, Applicant) and Heimer 

Family Trust (Owner) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy 

System (SES) occupying approximately 8.24 acres. Parcels 39.011.0100 and 

39.011.0200. TBD HWY 60 BLVD Mazeppa, MN 55956. The E ½ of the NE ¼  of 

Section 11 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A-1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_HEIMER.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Virtual Meeting Notice

Virtual Meeting Notice: The Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission will be 

conducting a meeting on October 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. Due to concerns surrounding the 

spread of COVID-19, the meeting and all public hearings will be conducted both in person 

at the Goodhue County Government Center and virtually via GoToMeeting. COVID-19 CDC 

recommendations will be followed at the meeting including social distancing protocols and 

requiring masks for all attendees appearing in person.

The public may monitor the meeting from a remote site by logging into 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/648613421 or calling 1 866 899 4679 beginning at 5:50 

PM or any time during the meeting.  Access Code: 648 -613-421 

Public Comments: Interested persons may submit comments by phone, in writing, or via 

email before noon on Monday, October 18, 2021. To submit your comments please email 

them to samantha.pierret@co.goodhue.mn.us or mail them to the Land Use Management 

Department at 509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN 55066. Comments received by this 

deadline will be read into the record during the public hearing for that item, including name 

and address.

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

September 20, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_SEPTEMBER2021_ PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Richard O'Brien And Sheila O'Brien Trusts)

Request for CUP, submitted by Richard O ’Brien and Sheila O ’Brien Trusts (Owners) for 

a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities include a sand/aggregate 

pit and associated processing/transport equipment and facilities. Parcels 39.034.0500 

and 39.034.0800. TBD White Pines Road SE Pine Island, MN 55963. The W ½ of the 

SE ¼ and Part of the E ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 34 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine 

Island Township. A1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_OBRIEN_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For A Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)

Request submitted by Impact Power Solutions (Brian Keenan, Applicant) and Heimer 

Family Trust (Owner) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy 

System (SES) occupying approximately 8.24 acres. Parcels 39.011.0100 and 

39.011.0200. TBD HWY 60 BLVD Mazeppa, MN 55956. The E ½ of the NE ¼  of 

Section 11 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A-1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_HEIMER.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/a9dac7e2-60e9-47ca-a232-035fb3c2dcee


Page 1 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

 September 21, 2021  MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 PM by 
Chair Marc Huneke in the Basement IT Conference Room at the Goodhue County Government Center 
in Red Wing.  

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present virtually via GoToMeeting: Marc Huneke, Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin 
Fox, Chris Buck, Howard Stenerson, Todd Greseth, and Richard Nystuen 

Commissioners Absent: Carli Stark    

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni (Virtual), Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, 
Zoning Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and Zoning Administrative Assistant Kathy Bauer 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 
1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting agenda. 
 
Motion carried 8:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Fox; seconded by Commissioner Miller to approve the previous month’s 
meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 8:0 
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 
There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest. 
 

4.   PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request submitted by Pivot Energy (MN Solar 18 LLC, Applicant) and David & Mary Wickum                                                                                                                         
(Owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 8.0 acres. 
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Elizabeth Reddington with  Pivot Energy stated the application was originally submitted for a 
 1-Megawatt System, however with Xcel Energy’s capacity limits in the area, the system has been 
downsized to 300-Kilowatt system encompassing about 2 acres.   
 
Chair  Huneke Opened the Public Hearing 
 
 No one spoke for or against the request.  
 
3After Chair Huneke called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner   
Gale and seconded by Commissioner Greseth to close the Public Hearing. 



Page 2 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

 September 21, 2021  MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
Motion Carried 8:0 

4It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Nystuen for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a CUP, submitted by Pivot Energy (MN Solar 18 LLC, Applicant) and 
David Wickum (Owner) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 300-Kilowatt  Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 8.0 acres.  
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless 
modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and Pivot Energy (MN Solar 18 LLC) 
shall be maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. A copy of the NPDES and SWPPP shall be submitted for administrative review as part of the 
Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicant should specify the seed mix to be used during the Building Permit approval process 
and shall submit “seed tags” to the Land Use Management Department prior to final 
inspection; 

7. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agricultural Protection District).  The Applicant 
shall request a final inspection by the Zoning Administrator for compliance with applicable 
zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

 
Motion Carried 8:0 
 

Other Discussion 

Commissioner Miller stated Pine Island Township has a proposal for a 1000-acre solar array within 5 
sections coming in the near future.  Stated concern for taking large sections of farmland out of production 
for solar arrays. 

Chair Huneke asked if the proposal would be on tillable ground. 



Page 3 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

 September 21, 2021  MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Miller answered it is approximately 85-90 percent tillable ground and centered among a 
group of farmers that are 70+ years of age.  Further noted he is not opposed to it but does have some 
concern about the tillable acreage being used for solar energy. 

Commissioner Greseth agreed and stated he hopes that energy companies are looking at other options too 
and  there is protection for agricultural land as well.   

Commissioner Buck emphasized the need in looking at what will happen with solar in the future and 
making a plan for it.  

Commissioner Stenerson replied having one big project as the proposed Pine Island one would be, may 
stop some of the applications for the smaller projects.  

Commissioner Greseth asked Reddington why the power had to be reduced for this project to 300 kw. 

Reddington replied the reason for the decrease in  power was because the distribution grid was maxed out, 
the substation could not handle the size, and the upgrades would be too costly.   

 
5ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Fox to adjourn 
the Planning Commission Meeting at 6:27 p.m.   

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Kathy Bauer, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

1APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda. 

 Motion carried 8:0 

2APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes. 

 Motion carried 8:0 

3Motion to close the Public Hearing  

 Motion carried  8:0 

4APPROVE the CUP request for Utility Scale Solar Energy System    

 Motion carried 8:0 

5ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the meeting 

 Motion carried 8:0 

 

  



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 7 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 
Report date:  October 8, 2021 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Richard O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts)  
Request for CUP, submitted by Richard O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts (Owners) for a Non-
Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities include a sand/aggregate pit and 
associated processing/transport equipment and facilities. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Richard O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts (Owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD White Pines Road SE Pine Island, MN 55963 
PID(s): 39.034.0500 and 39.034.0800 
Abbreviated Legal: The W ½ of the SE ¼ and Part of the E ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 34 TWP 109 
Range 15 in Pine Island Township. 
Zoning District: A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) 

 
Attachments and Links:  
Applications and revised project summary/maps 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428 
 
Background:  
The Richard O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts, owners of the subject property have submitted a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Application proposing to establish a mining site to extract non-
metallic mineral aggregates (construction sand/aggregates).  The site is proposed to include 38.96 
acres of mining located on two parcels.  Mining that includes extraction of more than 400 cubic 
yards per year in the A-1 District is subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit by the 
County Board.   
 
Project Summary: 
Staff has met with engineers from G-Cubed to guide the Applicants’ preparation of a proposal to 
conform to County application submittal requirements and pertinent performance standards to 
operate a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility in Pine Island Township.  
 
Land Use Management Department Staff have conducted a thorough review of the CUP Application 
submittals.  Three maps required in Article 14 of the County Zoning Ordinance depicting existing 
site conditions, proposed operations, and reclamation plans were submitted for review along with 
supplemental narratives describing additional details.  
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 7 

Existing Conditions: 
 
The Applicants prepared the required Map A depicting existing site conditions. Two parcels, both 
owned by the Applicants, will be affected by the proposed mining operation. Parcel 39.034.0500 
owned by the Richard O’Brien RLT consists of approximately 77.20 acres and parcel 39.034.0800 
owned by the Sheila O’Brien RLT consists of approximately 61.85 acres. The parcels are in section 
34 of Pine Island Township which is zoned A-1, Agriculture Protection District. The eastern parcel 
(Richard O’Brien RLT) consists mostly of row crop agriculture lands. There is an existing farmstead 
in the southeast corner of the parcel along White Pines Road. The property is currently registered 
as a feedlot with the Goodhue County Feedlot Officer. The western parcel (Sheila O’Brien RLT) 
consists of land used for row crop agriculture.  
 
The nearest residences (both owned by the Richard O’Brien RLT) are approximately 560-feet 
(parcel 39.034.0500) and 650-feet (parcel 39.034.0601) from the nearest areas to be mined on 
parcel 39.034.0500. Article 14 specifies that mining operations should be at least 1000-feet from 
existing dwellings. Setbacks may be reduced to 300-feet if written consent is obtained from the 
affected property owner. The property owners have submitted written consent to operate the 
mining operation no less than 300-feet from the existing residences.  
 
Three soil boring logs were provided with the application. The boring locations are shown on Map 
A Sheet 1A. Existing site geology was submitted as seen on Map A Sheet 1C. The parcels are 
surrounded by A-1 zoned properties to the north, east, and west mostly used for row crop 
agriculture. The nearest dwelling not owned by the Applicants is approximately 1,550 feet east of 
the operation owned by Scott Miller.  Section 34 is considered “full” for dwelling development (6 
dwellings where a maximum of 4 are allowed).   
 
Land to the south is located in the City of Pine Island and New Haven Township in Olmsted 
County. Uses include light industrial/commercial operations such as automobile sales and service 
and storage. The City has zoned these properties C-2, Highway Commercial District. The City has 
defined the C-2 District as an area “designed and intended to promote the development of uses 
which require a large concentration of automobile traffic.”  
 
Proposed Operations: 
 
The Applicants prepared required Map B depicting proposed operations. Approximately 38.96 
acres of the existing 139.05 total acres will be impacted by the mining operation. A 4-foot tall berm 
at a 3:1 slope is proposed to be established around the perimeter of the quarry as a screening, noise, 
and dust barrier. This berm will be constructed using overburden from the area to be mined. Three 
cross-sections are depicted on Sheet 2B Proposed Operations.  
 
The proposed area to be mined complies with all required setbacks in the Zoning Ordinance. A 
scale and scale house are the only structures proposed to be constructed on-site on the south side of 
the project area. Employee vehicle parking will be along the access road or within the project site 
area as operations necessitate. The operation will operate 12 months per year. Hours of operation 
would be Monday through Friday 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and Saturday 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
which is within the hours of operation limitations found in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

• Noise, Dust, Vibration, and Air Quality: 
 
Impacts from the proposed non-metallic mineral extraction facility may include noise, 
vibration, and dust.  Noise may be expected by the use of heavy equipment from mining, 
loading, and transport. Noise limitations and mitigation is regulated by the Mine Safety and 
Health Administration (MSHA). No blasting is proposed for the project.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 7 

 
 The operation would be subject to complying with applicable MPCA Noise Standards. 
Features included in the Proposed Operations Plan such as creating an earthen berm 
around the perimeter of the mining area that would be seeded to establish vegetative 
cover would help mitigate dust and noise impacts to neighboring properties. 

• Water Resources:  
 

The Applicant has stated that the proposed berm and diversion ditches will divert surface 
water around the pit while in operation. The pit will act as a water retention pond and all 
drainage within the pit will flow to the low point. All surface water within the pit will be 
contained within the construction limits and infiltrate through the floor of the pit.   
 
The operation will not be within ¼ mile of any public waters. Existing drainage flows from NE 
to SW to a culvert under Highway 52. The flow of drainage will not be changed during the 
operation of the quarry except for stormwater inside the quarry which will remain contained.   
 
• Aesthetics:  

  
Aggregate mining is a high-impact land use that results in significant long-term alterations to 
the landscape in addition to visual impacts for the duration of the mining activity.  These may 
include seeing open pits, major equipment, and hauling trucks.   

 
A 4-foot tall berm will be constructed approximately 650-feet north of White Pines Road. The 
berm will be vegetated and will be visible from various points on White Pines Road, Highway 
52, and 220th AVE. Mining activities will be occurring below grade and will be screened by the 
proposed vegetated berm. Stockpiles will be limited to 35-feet in height.  

 
Vehicles accessing and leaving the site will utilize White Pines Road (asphalt surface) to access 
and Highway 52 to the southeast. Two dwellings not owned by the Applicants are accessed 
from White Pines Road along this route. One owned by the James Miller Trust in Goodhue 
County and one owned by Donna Hoehne Trust in the City of Pine Island/Olmsted County. 
Some commercial/industrial uses utilize direct access points onto White Pines Road east of the 
proposed mineral extraction facility.  
 
• Traffic Safety:   

 
The Applicants have indicated that they expect an average of 25 truck trips per day during 
operation. The access road to the quarry site is White Pines Road SE, a City of Pine Island 
maintained road.  The Applicants have proposed one entrance and one separate exit point onto 
White Pines Road at existing field accesses. Accesses are located approximately 2.5-miles 
northwest of the Olmsted County 31 BLVD/Highway 52 interchange.  
 
• Site Security: 
The Applicant noted that berms to be established above the pit will act as site security and a 
gate will be installed at the entrance along with a sign containing contact information and 
regulations. The Planning Commission should consider whether fencing should be required in 
accordance with Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4(B) “Fencing, signs, and barriers are required 
around ponding areas and steep-sloped excavation areas unless, because of their location they 
are not deemed to create a safety hazard.”    
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 7 

Reclamation Plan: 
 
The Applicant is proposing to convert the proposed pit into a private lake with a residential 
subdivision surrounding the lake upon cessation of mining operations. A preliminary depiction of 
the subdivision layout is provided on Map C. The proposed subdivision would include the entire 
mined area and portions of the O’Brien property not affected by the mineral extraction operation.  
 
The Applicants prepared a Reclamation Plan which includes removal of any structures, temporary 
improvements, and spreading salvaged topsoil across disturbed areas above the waterline of the 
proposed lake at a minimum depth of 6-inches.  All disturbed areas will be seeded with an 
appropriate seed mix for vegetation re-establishment.  
 
Sheet 2B shows proposed future grading at a 1:3 slope with a 6.0% grade running down to the 
proposed lake within the residential subdivision. The Applicant has indicated they would petition 
for annexation into the City of Pine Island prior to developing the residential subdivision.  
 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4. S4 and S5 state that reclamation must be completed within 12-months 
after completion of mineral extraction. Given this required timeline, staff would recommend the 
Planning Commission and County Board specify as a condition of this CUP that the County Zoning 
Administrator consider reclamation of the site “complete” upon removal of structures and ancillary 
equipment, the establishment of stabilized grading at 1:3 slopes, and 70% vegetative growth on all 
disturbed areas.  
 
Any significant changes to the reclamation plan would need to be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission as required by Article 14 Section 6S3.  

 
SWCD Comments: 
Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District Director Beau Kennedy and Natural Resource 
Specialist Chad Hildebrand have reviewed the proposal and provided the following comments: 

• The proposal looks good. The applicant is conveying the water around the facility with a 
berm and a graded ditch/waterway. We would however recommend that the 
ditch/waterway be seeded and maintained as a grassed waterway until the water reaches 
a stable outlet (near HWY 52).  
 

• It looks like all surface water will remain on site and not leave the sand pit. They propose 
pumping water within the facility, but not dewatering the pit offsite. Also, they will be 
required to follow the NPDES permit requirements if larger issues arise and dewatering 
the pit is necessary for some reason.  

 
• According to the borings the applicant submitted, there will be mining below the water 

table however, no dewatering is proposed, and with similar sand mine operations, 
pumping down the water table within the pit is done as needed, and not continuously. We 
do not see the need to require water quality monitoring on this facility at this time. If 
operations change that may alter nearby hydrology, we should revisit the permit and 
make further recommendations at that time.  

 
• We see no issues with the reclamation plan.  

 
Pine Island Township: 
Pine Island Township considered the mining operation at their July 21, 2021 meeting. The 
Township approved the permit request with no additional comments.  
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 7 

City of Pine Island:  
Staff reached out to the City of Pine Island for comments on the project. Craig Britton, Pine Island 
City Engineer provided the following comments to staff: 

1. The City of Pine Island has a Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Plan with an 
established growth boundary including the properties where the mining operation is being 
proposed. The residential subdivision being proposed as part of the reclamation plan has 
the potential to be annexed and developed through the appropriate review and application 
process including but not limited to a Land Use Plan Amendment, Zone Change, General 
Development Plan, and Platting processes.  

2. The two proposed means of ingress/egress as shown on the submittal documents do not 
meet the spacing standards established for White Pines Road SE. Access from the subject 
properties onto White Pines Road SE shall be permitted by the City of Pine Island through a 
formal submittal process by the applicant.  

3. The subject property is adjacent to properties located within the City of Pine Island. The 
City requests the opportunity to regularly review and comment on the effectiveness of noise 
and dust mitigation measures taking place on the subject properties during mining 
operations.  

4. The City of Pine Island requests that the majority of the traffic generated by the mining 
operation be routed on White Pines Road SE, east of the subject properties to reduce traffic 
congestion at the County Road 11 and White Pines Road SE roundabout.  

 
County responses:  
1. The applicant/owners will need to work with the City of Pine Island to complete the 

annexation and platting process upon closure of the mining operation if not completed 
prior to the closure of the mine.  

2. The applicant/owners will need to obtain an access permit from the City of Pine Island 
and provide a copy of the approved permit to the County Zoning Administrator prior to 
beginning mining operations. 

3. County staff typically reviews mining operations upon receipt of yearly registration 
documents from operators and/or upon complaint. The City of Pine Island may work with 
the applicant/operator to establish a review timeline if they choose and the City may 
submit comments/issues to the County Zoning Administrator at any time during 
operation.  

4. The applicant has indicted that routing traffic to the east will not be an issue.  
   

Security: 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 1 requires the Applicant to post a letter of credit, bond, or cash escrow for 
a mineral extraction facility CUP. The security should account for costs of bringing the operation 
into compliance with the mineral extraction permit requirements including site monitoring and 
enforcement costs, extraordinary costs of repairing roads due to the special burden resulting from 
the hauling of materials and traffic associated with the operation, site restoration, and costs the 
County may incur in enforcing the terms of the Conditional Use Permit including attorney’s fees. 
The bond shall be for a minimum of one year and shall include a provision for notification to the 
County at least 30 days prior to cancellation or non-renewal. The Applicant has proposed 
reclamation costs to be $240,140.00, staff has calculated the required security to be $240,000. 

 
Findings of Fact:  

• The proposed sand pit operation does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of 
properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity. The quarry would be 
located within a primarily agricultural area. There are two dwellings within 1,000 feet of the 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 7 

proposed quarry, both owned by the Applicants, who have submitted written consent for a 
reduced setback.  

• That the establishment of the proposed mining operation is not anticipated to impede the 
normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses 
predominant to the area. The use is proposed to meet all standards of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. The quarry 
would be located in an A-1 Zoned section of Pine Island Township that is considered “full” for 
dwelling development. Surrounding property located in the City of Pine Island is zoned 
Highway Commercial District where dwellings are not a permitted use.  

• A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access 
roads, drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be provided to 
accommodate the proposed use.  

• The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space 
to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements. 

• The submitted plans detail adequate measures will be taken to prevent or control offensive 
odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance 
including berming, seeding, hours of operation, and MPCA Noise Standards. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Commission  
• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Richard 
O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts (Owners) for a Conditional Use Permit to establish a Non-
Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility.  Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and 
narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP; 

2. Hours of Operation shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Saturday.  Any exceptions must comply with 
Article 14, Section 6, Subd. 4; 

3. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, 
and regulations.  Evidence shall be provided to the County of all required permits 
prior to the start of Mining Operations; 

4. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 14 Mineral Extraction and Article 21 Agricultural Protection District;  

5. Site Reclamation after completion of mineral extraction shall be performed 
according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4S;  

6. The operation shall be annually registered with Goodhue County in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 2;   

7. Security.  The applicant/owner (Richard O’Brien and Sheila O’Brien Trusts) of the 
properties on which the mineral extraction is occurring, shall post a letter of credit, 
bond, or cash escrow of $240,000.  If the required Security is provided in the form of 
a “Letter of Credit” or a “Performance Bond”, it shall be subject to review and 
approval by the County Attorney prior to the start of Mining Operations.  Goodhue 
County shall be listed as the eligible party to access the Security to reimburse the 
following costs upon failure of the Applicant/Owner to comply with requirements of 
this Conditional Use Permit;  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 7 of 7 

8.  Mineral Extraction and related activities are limited to the 38.96 acres as legally    
described on the Certificate of Survey for Bruening Rock Products O’Brien Sand Pit 
(Sheet 1B); and 

9.  Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land  
Use Management Department prior to constructing any structures on the property. 

10.  The Applicant shall obtain approval for access to White Pines Road SE from the City     
of Pine Island and submit said approval to the County Zoning Administrator prior to 
beginning mining operations.  
 

 
 















 

 
 
 

ENGINEERING 
SURVEYING 
PLANNING 

  

14070 Highway 52 Southeast, Chatfield, Minnesota 55923 
Phone  507-867-1666     Fax  507-867-1665     www.ggg.to                     

 
 

O’Brian Sand Pit – Bruening Rock Products Application Supplemental 
 

 Contingency Plan – Section 5Q 
In the case of a failure of the perimeter berm caused by erosion or blowout all stormwater 
would be retained within the pit boundary and filtered out through the sand within the site.   
The perimeter berm failure would be repaired immediately and seeded within 7 days.  The 
drainage pattern within the site will be to the center of the disturbed area which would prevent 
sediments from eroding from the site.   

 
There is no processing proposed that would produce process water, or tailings.  Fueling and oil 
changes are contracted to venders who service equipment daily.  Oil changes are performed 
with equipment which extracts used oil from engines mechanically which significantly reduces 
the chance of spillage.  With the exception of the petroleum products in the construction 
equipment there should be no other form of chemical contamination on-site.  If a fuel spill 
would happen, mitigation measures including: observing safety precautions, stopping the spill, 
calling 911 if fire or public safety hazards are created, containing the spilled material, reporting 
the spill to the Minnesota Duty Officer and clean up. Spill containment and emergency 
preparedness can minimize damage and cost of cleanup. Materials such as containment sorbent 
and pads may be kept on-site during construction and mining operations. Any spill greater than 
five gallons of petroleum requires the operator to contact the Minnesota Duty Officer at (651) 
649-5451 or (800) 422-0798 and report the spill.    
 

 Project Phasing – Section 6M 
This project is less than 40 acres and will be completed in 1 phase.  The mining operation shall 
begin with stripping topsoil and placing it in the perimeter berms as proposed on map 2A.  The 
excavation of the sand will begin at the end of the access road where the scale and scale house 
are proposed then continue in a counter clockwise direction until all marketable material is 
extracted.  Reclamation will commence upon completion of the mining process.   
 

 Weed Control – Section 6N 
The operator will mow vegetation within the quarry to control weeds and maintain a reasonable 
appearance of the site.   
 

 Waste Disposal. – Section 6O 
An waste generated from the mining operation shall be disposed of in accordance with Federal, 
State, and county requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

ENGINEERING 
SURVEYING 
PLANNING 

  

14070 Highway 52 Southeast, Chatfield, Minnesota 55923 
Phone  507-867-1666     Fax  507-867-1665     www.ggg.to                     

 
 

O’Brian Sand Pit – Bruening Rock Products Reclamation Estimate 
 
The proposed end use of the O’Brian Pit is a private 23-acre lake surrounded by a residential 
subdivision to be platted within the City of Pine Island.   
 
Once quarry operations have been completed the operator will be responsible for the removal of all 
internal roads, scale, scale house, and machinery (miscellaneous removals).  The site shall then be 
graded per the reclamation map (common excavation).  Once mass grading is complete 6” salvaged 
topsoil shall be spread across all disturbed areas with the exception of the 10:1 bench which will 
remain as a private sandy beach and the area below the water depth (salvaged topsoil respread).  Upon 
completion of topsoil spreading the entire site shall be seeded, mulched, and fertilized in accordance 
with the latest Minnesota Manual for Erosion Control and MnDot Regulations.  Vegetation shall be 
inspected at 6 months and 12 months, noxious weeds shall be removed and non-vegetated areas 
reseeded as needed (seed, fertilize and mulch).   
 
Upon reclamation approval from Goodhue County the site will be developed by the owner or sold to a 
developer to go through annexation and platting process.  Below is a cost estimate for final 
reclamation.   
 

O'Brian Sand Pit - Bruening Rock Products 
Reclamation Estimate 

    9/20/2021 

  ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY 
UNI
T

UNIT PRICE   AMOUNT 

      

1 Common Excavation  14700 CY $5.00   $73,500.00  

   (calculated as in place material excavated and placed as onsite to meet reclamation grades) 

2 Salvaged Topsoil Respread 16940 CY $6.00   $101,640.00  

   (6" average depth)    

3 Seed, fertilize and mulch 21 acre $2,500.00   $52,500.00  

      

4 Miscellaneous removals & disposals 1 LS $12,500.00   $12,500.00  

  (internal roads, scale, scale house)    

   Total =   $240,140.00  

              

 
 
 
 



































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: October 18, 2021 
Report date:  October 8, 2021 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for CUP, submitted by Impact Power Solutions (Applicant) and the Heimer Family Trust 
(Owner), for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy System occupying 
approximately 8.24 acres.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Impact Power Solutions (Applicant) and Heimer Family Trust (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: TBD HWY 60 BLVD, Mazeppa, MN 55956 
Parcel(s): 39.011.0100, 39.011.0200 
Abbreviated Legal: E ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 11 TWP 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. 
Township Information: Pine Island Township received the application materials from the applicant 
and signed the acknowledgement form with “no objections” to the project.   
Zoning District: A1 (Agricultural Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Applications and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant has submitted a CUP request to construct and operate a 1 Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) utility-scale solar garden on approximately 8.24 acres of leased land located in 
Pine Island Township that is currently owned by the Heimer Family Trust. The project would be 
developed in conjunction with the State of Minnesota Solar Garden program and Xcel Energy's Solar 
Rewards Community Program. The program allows developers to design, permit, own, and operate 
solar energy systems and sell the generated power directly to consumers. Upon completion, the Solar 
Garden would connect to Xcel Energy’s distribution grid and generate up to 1 MW of energy annually 
over the next 25 years, with the possibility of 10 years extension.   

Novel Energy submitted an application for a CUP request for a utility-scale photovoltaic 1 Megawatt 
(MW) Solar Energy System occupying 6.5 acres on parcel 39.011.0100 in 2020. The CUP was 
approved by the County Board on April 7, 2020, however no further action was taken by the 
Applicant to construct the facility. Therefore, the 2020 CUP expired on April 7, 2021.  

Per Goodhue County regulations, Solar Energy Systems (SES) that are the primary use of the land 
and are designed to primarily provide energy to off-site users or export to the wholesale market may 
be conditionally permitted as a “Utility-Scale SES” within the County’s A1 zoned districts.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The approximately 8.24-acre site to be leased by the applicant is currently used for row-crop 

agriculture. 

Parcel 39.011.0100 consists of cropland and grass areas with some trees and a wet area which is 
not classified as a wetland. Parcel 39.011.0200 consists of cropland and pasture area associated 
with a registered feedlot. A dwelling and associated accessory structures are also located on 
parcel 39.011.0200. 

Adjacent land uses include agriculture and medium density residential.  

The nearest residence not owned by the applicants is located approximately 615 feet northeast of 
the proposed facility and is owned by Brenton Lexvold (Parcel 39.002.1300). The City of 
Mazeppa is approximately 1.15 miles east of the proposed facility.    

 The property is bordered to the south and west by A-1 zoned properties and to the north and east 
by A-2 zoned properties. Section 11 and all neighboring sections of Pine Island Township are 
considered “full” for dwelling development.  

Solar Array: 
 The solar array is proposed to include 3,900 single axis tracking panels installed in 39 rows.  

Steel and aluminum racks will hold up solar panels, reaching 10 feet above grade at the 
maximum configuration.   

The racking will be installed with piles that are anchored into the ground to an appropriate depth 
based on soil and geotechnical analysis.   

The solar array will interconnect to the power grid via a concrete equipment pad in the northwest 
corner of the project area, facilitating connection to an existing Xcel Energy circuit.  

 A 15 foot wide crushed aggregate access road will be provided to access the leased project area. 
The Applicant will need to work with MNDOT to permit the new access road onto HWY 60. 
Emergency vehicle access appears adequate to service the facility.  

A recorded ingress/egress easement is not required for the property given the site is to be leased 
and all land to be crossed to access the site will remain under common ownership. 

A separate fire number will be required for the site. 

 Once constructed, traffic to the site would be limited to periodic visits by maintenance and 
landscaping personnel to perform routine maintenance, in addition to any unplanned 
maintenance. 

 The applicant is in the process of combining parcels 39.011.0100 (10 acres) and 39.011.0200 (70 
acres) to conform with GCZO setback standards.  

Landscaping/Drainage: 

 The site slopes generally from southwest to northeast. 

 Apart from the meter pad (300 square feet) the entire area within the project boundary will be 
seeded with a “pollinator friendly” seed mix based on MN Board of Soil and Water Resources 
guidelines. The Applicant should work with the Goodhue SWCD to determine an appropriate 
seed mix prior to submitting a Building Permit application.  

 A Level 2 wetland delineation was completed in 2019 and is valid for five years. This delineation 
found no wetlands in the project area. The Applicant notes that stormwater management will be 
handled by a licensed civil engineering firm and will include the use of BMPs. Goodhue SWCD 
Water Planner Chad Hildebrand has reviewed the proposal and stated:  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

 “There are identified wetlands from the NWI “Seasonally Flooded Basin” but that is out of the 
project area and the “Potential Wetland” they identified appears to be a concentrated gully or 
flow and appears to be outside the project area as well.”  

 An erosion control/storm water management plan is customarily submitted for administrative 
review at the time of building permit application. 

 Existing vegetation will be preserved wherever possible. The Applicant noted that vegetative 
screening is not being proposed due to the distance from adjacent residences and existing 
vegetation. The Planning Commission should consider whether any screening of the proposed 
SES is warranted. Additional screening was not required for the CUP issued in 2020.  

 An 8-foot tall deer style/fixed knot fence will be constructed around the perimeter of the project 
area for security.  

 Ample room exists on the property to fulfill GCZO off-street parking requirements.  

 Construction is expected to last approximately 3 months, with construction expected to begin in 
2022.  

 Maintenance/Decommissioning: 

 The project is subject to issuance of a Building Permit and must be constructed according to 
applicable building code requirements. The project will be inspected by County Building 
Inspections Staff and the State Electrical Inspector.  In addition, Planning and Zoning Staff will 
inspect the project upon completion to ensure conformance with applicable zoning requirements. 

Mowing will be limited and utilized only when necessary for routine maintenance and potential 
weed and shrub control.  

 The applicant has an operations and equipment inspection plan to ensure safety, reliable 
operation, and production of the system.  

 The Applicant has indicated their intent to establish a Decommissioning Agreement between 
Impact Power Solutions and Heimer Family Trust that includes removal and recycling of all non-
biodegradable equipment including concrete foundations, access roads, fencing, cables, and 
other ancillary facilities owned by the solar garden and the establishment of a financial security. 
The signed agreement will be secured before the building permit is submitted.  

Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to provide a financial surety at up to 125% of 
the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has not typically exercised the right to financial 
assurance requirements for similar solar installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and 
County Board should consider if the County should require financial assurance to cover 
anticipated decommissioning costs. 
 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Solar Garden does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 
the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use appears harmonious with the established uses 
in the vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Solar Garden is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance upon combination of parcels, and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land 
uses. 

3. A review of the applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance.  

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted 
by Impact Power Solutions (Applicant) and Heimer Family Trust (Owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8.24 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and Impact Power Solutions shall be 
established prior to Building Permit approval; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District to determine 
an appropriate seed mix for disturbed areas of the site and should submit “seed tags” to the 
Land Use Management department prior to final inspection;  

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Parcels 39.011.0100 and 39.011.0200 shall be combined into one legal parcel prior to 
building permit submittal;   

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agricultural Protection District).  The applicant 
shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; and 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

 

 

 

  

 










































